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Objectives
 Understand the change from decennial census 

long-form to the American Community Survey

 Understand why we ask questions about veterans

 Understand the history of changes to the veteran 
status questions

 Learn a variety of tools for accessing survey data



Decennial Census History
1790-1930

Census: one form to all households 

1940-2000
Census: short form (100% count) 

long form (1 in 6 households in 2000)

2000
American Community Survey:

large-scale demonstration

2005-present
American Community Survey*: 

full implementation

2010
Census: short form only (50 states, DC)

long form (U.S. territories)

*Includes Puerto Rico 
Community Survey

http://www.census.gov/history/pdf/cff4.pdf

http://www.census.gov/history/pdf/cff4.pdf


Decennial Census
History of Veteran Questions

The first data on veterans to be published by the U.S. 
government were based on an inquiry in the 1840
census which asked the name, age, and place of 
residence of pensioners of the Revolutionary War

Veteran status questions were asked in every decennial 
census from 1910 to 2000, with the exception of 1920

Prior to 1980, the veteran status questions were asked 
of all males 14 years and older

Starting in 1980, the veteran status questions were 
asked of all individuals 15 years and older

Complete question wording for the 1910 through 2000 decennial censuses can be found here:
https://www.census.gov/content/dam/Census/topics/population/veterans/guidance/historical-decennial-
census-veteran-questions.pdf

https://www.census.gov/content/dam/Census/topics/population/veterans/guidance/historical-decennial-census-veteran-questions.pdf


Questionnaire 
Wording 
Changes
1960 to 1990 
Censuses



Census 2000
Veteran Status

Period of Military Service
Years of Service

Veterans



An ongoing monthly survey sent to 
3.5 million addresses 

• Data collection through four modes: 
Internet, Mail, Telephone, Personal Visit

Annually produces 1-year and 5-
year period datasets

• Detailed population and housing 
estimates previously collected on the 
decennial long form

• Critical information on small areas and 
small population groups 

• Over 11 billion estimates for over 35,000 
communities

Used to allocate about $400 billion 
in federal program funds

American Community Survey
What is it?



American Community Survey
How is it different from a census?

The decennial census counts the population to support 
apportionment and redistricting

The ACS supplements this information with annually 
updated estimates on the nation’s population and 
housing characteristics

The purpose of the ACS is not to count every person in a 
community or town but rather, to provide a portrait of the 
community’s characteristics 



American Community Survey
How do we manage content?

Title 13 of the U.S. Code provides the current legal authority for 
collecting all ACS data

National need to provide data for small geographic areas and small 
population groups weighed against respondent burden

Office of Management and Budget (OMB) approves final content

Census Bureau works closely with OMB and other Federal Agencies
 Department of Veterans Affairs is the main stakeholder for the 

questions related to veterans



American Community Survey
Why do we ask questions about veterans?

Meeting Federal Needs
 Used primarily by the Department of 

Veterans Affairs to: 
 Measure the needs of veterans 

and  evaluate the impact of 
veterans’ programs dealing with 
education, employment, and 
health care

 Measure a veteran’s service-
connected disability 
compensation entitlement status 
to accurately anticipate the need 
for VA care and its associated 
cost

Community Benefits
 Budgeting and program planning for 

medical services and nursing homes 
for veterans

 Planning locations and sizes of 
veterans’ cemeteries

 Determining segments of population 
who may not be receiving needed 
medical services

 Allocating funds for employment and 
job training programs for veterans

 Allowing VA medical centers and their 
regional networks to engage in 
meaningful local area planning that 
accounts for expectations of the future 
demand for VA care



For the 1999 to 2002 ACS, the veterans series of questions matched 
Census 2000

At the request of the Department of Veterans Affairs:

 In 2003, several changes were made to the veteran status and 
periods of military service questions

 In 2008, new content about service-connected disability was added 
to the questionnaire and the years of service question was removed

 In 2013, the veteran status question was simplified and the periods 
of military service categories were collapsed

American Community Survey
History of Veteran Questions



American Community Survey
Veteran Status

Question wording 2003 to 2013 Question wording 2013 and later

https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/acs/methodology/questionnaire-archive.html

Veterans

https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/acs/methodology/questionnaire-archive.html


American Community Survey
Period of Military Service

Question wording 2003 to 2013 Question wording 2013 and later



American Community Survey
Service-Connected Disability Status and Rating

The years of service question from Census 2000 was deleted to make room for this new question in 2008.

Question wording 2008 and later



Demographic
Age and Sex
Group Quarters Population
Hispanic or Latino origin
Race
Relationship 

Social
Ancestry
Citizenship Status
Disability Status
Educational Attainment
Fertility
Field of Degree
Grandparents as Caregivers
Language
Marital History
Marital Status
Place of Birth
School Enrollment
Residence 1 Year Ago/Migration
Veteran status
Period of military service
Service-connected disability status
Year of Entry

Economic
Class of Worker
Commuting to Work/ 
Journey to Work
Employment Status
Food Stamps/Supplemental Nutrition   
Assistance Program (SNAP)

Health Insurance Coverage
Income and Earnings
Industry and Occupation
Poverty
Work Status

Housing
Computer Ownership & Internet 
Access
House Heating Fuel
Housing tenure (rent/own)
Kitchen Facilities
Occupancy/Vacancy Status
Occupants per Room
Owner Monthly Costs
Plumbing Facilities
Rent Statistics
Rooms / Bedrooms
Telephone Service Available
Type of housing unit
Units in Structure
Value of Home
Vehicles Available 
Year Householder Moved Into Unit
Year Structure Built

Demographic
Age and Sex
Hispanic or Latino origin
Race
Relationship

Housing
Housing tenure (rent/own)
Occupancy/Vacancy Status

American Community 
Survey Topics

Census 2010 
Topics



Census 2010 
Stateside Content

One of the shortest questionnaires in history
Very close to the length and scope of inquiries asked in 1790

Everyone in the household answered seven questions: 
 name
 gender
 race
 ethnicity 
 whether they sometimes live somewhere else
 how many people live in the residence
 whether it is a house, apartment, or mobile home

 No veterans content on the stateside census form

http://www.census.gov/2010census/about/interactive-form.php

http://www.census.gov/2010census/about/interactive-form.php


Census 2010 
Island Areas Content

In addition to the 50 states and District of Columbia, the U.S. Census Bureau also conducts 
censuses and surveys in the U.S. territories  

Census and survey operations are conducted in cooperation with the governments of the 
Island Areas and frequently include modifications to the questionnaires to help the local and 
federal governments better understand the populations being counted

The Island Areas include:
 U.S. Virgin Islands
 Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands
 American Samoa
 Guam

The 2010 census of the Island Areas was a 100% enumeration of the population

 Long-form questions, similar to those on ACS were asked, including the series on 
veteran status, period of service, and service-connected disability

http://www.census.gov/2010census/news/press-kits/island-areas/island-areas.html

http://www.census.gov/2010census/news/press-kits/island-areas/island-areas.html


How to Access Data
Online:
 QuickFacts
 My Congressional District
 American FactFinder

Download:
 American FactFinder Download Center
 Summary File 
 Application Programming Interface (API)
 Geodatabase format (joined with shapefiles)

Microdata:
 DataFerrett
 Public Use Microdata Sample (PUMS)

Custom Tabulations



QuickFacts
When to use: If you need an estimate of veterans in a state, county, or city

https://www.census.gov/quickfacts/

http://quickfacts.census.gov/


My Congressional District
When to use: If you need an estimate of how many veterans live in your 

Congressional District
http://www.census.gov/mycd/

http://www.census.gov/mycd/


American FactFinder
When to use: If you need detailed demographic or socio-economic statistics 

about veterans in a specific geography
http://factfinder.census.gov

http://factfinder2.census.gov/


American FactFinder
Availability of ACS Data Products

Estimated 
Population of 
Geographic Area

1-Year 
Estimates

5-Year 
Estimates

65,000 or more X X

20,000 to 64,999 X

Less than 20,000 X

https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/acs/guidance/estimates.html

https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/acs/guidance/estimates.html


American FactFinder
Quick Link to Most Recent Veterans Tables

https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/acs/guidance/subjects.html
On this page, click on “Veterans” in the list for social characteristics.

The list of available estimates 
will change once a geography 
is selected.

https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/acs/guidance/subjects.html


American FactFinder
ACS Data Product Types

Profiles
• Data Profiles (DP) 
• Narrative Profiles (NP) 
• Comparison Profiles (CP)
• Selected Population 

Profiles (S0201)

Tables
• Detailed Tables (B or C)
• Subject Tables (S)
• Ranking Tables (R)
• Geographic Comparison 

Tables (GCT)



ACS Summary File
When to use: If you need to access detailed demographic or socio-economic 

statistics about veterans for many geographies at once.
https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/acs/data/summary-file.html

Series of comma-delimited text files on the FTP site 
Contain all of the Detailed Tables already published for specific 
geographic areas 

 data only (no titles, headings, etc.)

American  FactFinder Summary  File

https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/acs/data/summary-file.html


Application Programming Interface (API)
When to use: If you are/have access to a developer and wish to use data to 

create/power software applications.
http://www.census.gov/developers/

http://www.census.gov/developers/


Geodatabase Format Files
When to use: If you need to present data as a map, and wish to use 

shapefiles pre-joined with data.
http://www.census.gov/geo/maps-data/data/tiger-data.html

http://www.census.gov/geo/maps-data/data/tiger-data.html


NOTE: ACS public-use microdata are only available for nation, state, and PUMAs.

DataFerrett
When to use: If you want to make custom tables of characteristics not found in 

published ACS data products and do not have access to statistical software
http://dataferrett.census.gov/

http://dataferrett.census.gov/


Public Use Microdata Sample (PUMS)
When to use:  If you have access to statistical software packages and want to create 

custom tabulations not available through published ACS products
https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/acs/data/pums.html

NOTE: ACS public-use microdata are only available for nation, state, and PUMAs.

https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/acs/data/pums.html


Custom Tabulations
When to use: If you need a set of characteristics not available in a currently 

published table, or if you need statistics for a custom geography.
https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/acs/data/custom-tables.html

https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/acs/data/custom-tables.html


Additional Resources



American Community Survey Tables Pertaining to Veterans 1-Year 5-Year

DETAILED TABLES:
B21001 – Sex by Age by Veteran Status for the Civilian Population 18 Years and Over X X

B21001A-I – Sex by Age by Veteran Status for the Civilian Population 18 Years and Over (race iterated tables) X

B21002 – Period of Military Service for Civilian Veterans 18 Years and Over X X

B21003 – Veteran Status by Educational Attainment for the Civilian Population 25 Years and Over X X

B21004 – Median Income in the Past 12 Months by Veteran Status by Sex for the Civilian Population 18 Years and Over with Income in 
the Past 12 Months

X X

B21005 – Age by Veteran Status by Employment Status for the Civilian Population 18 to 64 Years X X

B21007 – Age by Veteran Status by Poverty Status in the Past 12 Months by Disability Status for the Civilian Population 18 Years and 
Over

X

B21100 – Service-Connected Disability-Rating Status and Ratings for Civilian Veterans 18 Years and Older X X

COLLAPSED TABLES:
C21001A-I – Sex by Age by Veteran Status for the Civilian Population 18 Years and Over (race iterated tables) X X

C21005 – Veteran Status by Employment Status for the Civilian Population 18 to 64 Years X

C21007 – Age by Veteran Status by Poverty Status in the Past 12 Months by Disability Status for the Civilian Population 18 Years and 
Over

X X

C21100 – Service-Connected Disability-Rating Status for Civilian Veterans 18 Years and Older X

SUBJECT TABLES:
S2101 – Veteran Status X X

RANKING TABLES:
R2101 – Percent of the Civilian Population 18 years and Over Who are Veterans X

GCT2101 – Percent of the Civilian Population 18 years and Over Who are Veterans X X

PROFILE TABLES:
Note: Estimate and percentage of civilian veterans ONLY are included in the following profile tables.

DP02 Data Profile—Social Characteristics Table X X

CP02 Comparison Data Profile—Social Characteristics Table X

S0201 Selected Population Profile X



Table Title

CENSUS 2000 CENSUS 2010
Summary 

File 3 
(US & 

Puerto Rico)

Summary 
File 4 
(US & 

Puerto Rico)

Guam Northern 
Mariana 

Islands

American 
Samoa

U.S. Virgin 
Islands

Guam Northern 
Mariana 

Islands

American 
Samoa

U.S. Virgin 
Islands

Armed Forces Status by School Enrollment by Educational 
Attainment by Employment Status for the Population 16 
to 19 Years

P038

Sex by Armed Forces Status by Veteran Status for the 
Population 18 Years and Over

PBG029 PBG029 PBG029 PBG025

Sex by Age by Armed Forces Status by Veteran Status for 
the Population 18 Years and Over

P039 PCT067 PCT035 PCT035 PCT035 PCT031

Sex by Age by Veteran Status for the Population 18 Years 
and Over

PCT37 PCT37 PCT37 PCT33

Sex by Age by Armed Forces Status by Veteran Status for 
the Population 18 Years and Over (race iterated tables)

PCT066A-
PCT066I

Age by Armed Forces Status by Veteran Status for the 
Population 18 Years and Over

PBG028 PBG028 PBG028 PBG024 PBG28 PBG28 PBG28 PBG26

Period of Military Service for Civilian Veterans 18 Years 
and Over

P040 PCT068 PBG030 PBG030 PBG030 PBG026 PBG30 PBG30 PBG30 PBG28

Service-connected Disability Status and Ratings for 
Civilian Veterans 18 Years and Over

PBG31 PBG31 PBG31 PBG29

Decennial Census Data Products
Census 2010 in the U.S. Island Areas collected data similar to that of the ACS. 

Tables related to veterans are listed below.



Other sources of data on veterans available 
from U.S. Census Bureau

Demographic Surveys

American Community Survey
https://www.census.gov/programs-
surveys/acs/guidance.html

2010 Census (U.S. Territories only)
https://www.census.gov/2010census/news/press
-kits/island-areas/island-areas.html

Current Population Survey
https://www.census.gov/programs-
surveys/cps.html

Survey of Income and Program Participation
http://www.census.gov/programs-
surveys/sipp/about.html

Survey of Business Owners
https://www.census.gov/programs-
surveys/sbo.html

Annual Survey of Entrepreneurs
https://www.census.gov/programs-
surveys/ase.html

Economic Surveys

https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/acs/guidance.html
https://www.census.gov/2010census/news/press-kits/island-areas/island-areas.html
https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/cps.html
http://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/sipp/about.html
https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/sbo.html
https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/ase.html


Veterans Research at the U.S. Census Bureau
Veterans Statistics Webpage
http://www.census.gov/topics/population
/veterans.html

Blogs
https://www.census.gov/about/contact-
us/social_media.html

http://www.census.gov/topics/population/veterans.html
https://www.census.gov/about/contact-us/social_media.html


What data on veterans are not available 
from any U.S. Census Bureau surveys?

Military rank, branch of service, length of service
 Exception:  Branch and length are available in the CPS veteran 

supplement

Combat experience
 Exception: Available in the CPS veteran supplement

Homelessness

VA benefits other than service-connected disability

Health status of veterans



External Resources
Bureau of Labor Statistics

Employment Situation of Veterans Report

Department of Veterans Affairs
National Center for Veterans Analysis and Statistics
Veterans Benefits Administration Reports
Project CHALENG (veteran homelessness)

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
Annual Homeless Assessment Report to Congress
Homeless Population and Subpopulation Reports

http://www.bls.gov/news.release/vet.toc.htm
http://www.va.gov/vetdata/
http://www.benefits.va.gov/REPORTS/annual_benefits_report.asp
http://www.va.gov/homeless/chaleng.asp
https://www.hudexchange.info/resource/4074/2014-ahar-part-1-pit-estimates-of-homelessness/
https://www.onecpd.info/resource-library/coc-homeless-populations-and-subpopulations-reports/
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